
SCRUTINY COMMISSION 4 

Minutes of a meeting of Scrutiny Commission 4 held on Thursday, 11th September, 2008 at 6.00 p.m. in the Reception Suite, Civic Offices, Telford.  
PRESENT:
Councillors K.L. Tomlinson (Chairman), R.K. Austin, R. Aveley, N. Dugmore and C.R.P. Mollett. M. Viney (Co-opted Member) 

ALSO PRESENT:
Councillors J.M. Seymour (Cabinet Member – Adult & Consumer Care), R.E. Groom (Member of Taxi Services Scrutiny Review Group) David Johnson (Head of Human Resources), Jonathan Sedgebeer (Branch Secretary – UNISON), Nigel Houlston (Regulation & Resilience Manager)
SC4-10
CHAIRMAN’S WELCOME

The Chairman welcomed Councillor Nigel Dugmore and Maurice Viney to their first meeting of the Commission.

SC4-11
MINUTES

RESOLVED – that the minutes of the meeting of Scrutiny Commission 4 held on 9th July, 2008 be confirmed and signed by the Chairman.
SC4-12
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Councillors A.A. Meredith and H. Rhodes

SC4-13
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND PARTY WHIP

None.

SC4-14
UPDATE ON TAXI ACTION PLAN

The Chairman requested that the Regulation & Resilience Manager give a short overview of the topic for the benefit of the new Members and those not able to attend the meeting on the 24th January 2008, which had received an update on the Taxi Services Review.

The Regulation & Resilience Manager explained that the Action Plan had been drawn up to ensure that the recommendations of the three examinations of the Council’s Licensing Service, namely the External Review, the Audit Review and the Scrutiny Review, were delivered within the agreed timescales.  He further explained that the Taxi Conditions Review was a fundamental part of the ongoing improvements in this service area.  Taxi drivers currently operated under four different set of Conditions, which had not been reviewed for 4-5 years, and had, therefore, welcomed the review as a means of determining how best the service could be operated within the Borough.  The Review would conclude on the 12th September 2008 and its recommendations and the results of the consultation process would be reported to the Licensing Committee before the end of the year.  
Councillor Seymour referred to recommendation S1 of the Action Plan and informed the Commission that a Taxi & Private Hire Forum had been established with representatives from each of the four sets of Conditions and of the Council.  This met quarterly to discuss operational and licensing issues.  The statutory body responsible for dealing with these matters was the Council’s Licensing Committee.

With regard to the recommendations set out in the Action Plan, she said that 66%, excluding those relating to Taxi Conditions, had now been completed.  Twenty-seven new actions had been implemented since the January meeting of the Commission and she drew Members’ attention to the Safety Leaflet (as tabled) which had been produced.  
An issue identified at the January meeting of the Commission had been that of enforcement and Councillor Seymour informed Members that this would be increased between now and Christmas with a more robust approach being taken to serious offenders.  She also said that the review and drafting of new Licensing Conditions for Taxis had been based upon best practice throughout the country.  A wide ranging consultation process had been carried out between 4th August and 12th September, including five special events.  In addition, interested parties could send in written or e-mailed comments.  The new Conditions, once formally adopted, would hopefully be fit for purpose and meet the needs of the Council and the taxi drivers and operators.
Members raised the following:
· Recommendation X18(c) relating to the disproportionate number of Asian drivers being subjected to enforcement - Councillor Kuldip Singh Sahota asked what progress been made. 

· The Regulation & Resilience Manager (RRM) responded that work had been ongoing with assistance from Diane Cuff (TREDP) and the Revd David Lavender to ensure that Asian drivers were not being targeted and that enforcement was intelligence-led and focused on those areas where most offences were committed, e.g. outside public houses and night clubs.  However, it was a fact that most taxi drivers working at night were Asian.  He explained that enforcement was undertaken as an entirely independent process whereby it was the vehicle in question that was logged and identified rather than the driver.  In addition, there were robust procedures in place to prevent unfair action being taken.
A number of Asian operators and drivers attended meetings of the Forum and tended not to focus on ethnicity issues but upon what they perceived as attempts to prevent them working as they wished.
In response to a further question from Councillor Sahota, the RRM said that, to the best of his knowledge, approximately 42% of taxi licence holders were Asian.

· Recommendation S4b – use of the Driving Standards Agency to conduct mystery shopper assessments.
Councillor Roger Aveley asked why the DSA had been chosen for this and how much did it cost the authority.  The RRM replied that the DSA was used as it was an independent body with the required expertise on driving standards but he was not able to say how much its services cost.  In addition, he said that no such exercise had yet been carried out as the use of feedback cards had been raised as part of the review of Taxi Conditions and, therefore, had to be consulted upon.  Unfortunately, Private Hire drivers were not in favour of them but Hackney Carriage drivers were.  In view of this, Councillor Karen Tomlinson asked how this would be progressed and the RRM explained that it would be determined by the Licensing Committee as part of the Conditions Review and Councillor Jacqui Seymour added that, if drivers were not content with the outcome, it would be considered by the Taxi & Private Hire Forum.
· Councillor Aveley asked if the DSA would be used for the compulsory testing of taxi drivers.  

The RRM said that this had been looked at as part of the Conditions Review.  
· Recommendation S11 – agreement to and implementation of a dress code for all drivers
Councillor Roger Aveley asked for details of the dress code and the RRM replied that there was already such a code in place but it was not vigorously enforced.  It required drivers to be smart, presentable, clean, well-turned-out, etc.  Shorts were acceptable but needed to be below knee length.  The code was based upon those used by other licensing authorities.
· Recommendations S12 – Taxi Licence Conditions to be in plain English and S15 – Enforcement Notices to be in plain English
Councillor Roger Aveley queried the value of this recommendation if drivers were not tested on their ability to read English.  Councillor Jacqui Seymour responded that there was a requirement for them to do so, which would be fully enforced.
· Recommendation S14 – requirement for operators to keep a record of and review the hours worked by their drivers
Councillor Roger Aveley asked if there was any upper limit to the number of hours that could be worked and the RRM replied that there was none other than that they should be safe to drive.
· Councillor Nigel Dugmore welcomed the introduction of the Safety Leaflet and asked where it would be available.  The RRM said that it would available in taxis, be circulated to all operators and placed in appropriate locations such as public house, night clubs, doctors’ surgeries, etc.  
Councillor Bob Groom commented on the statement that the Council had been advised that it had no powers to control hours of working. This being the case, he recommended that the RRM consult with other licensing authorities and his professional body with a view to getting action taken nationally to introduce such a requirement.  The RRM explained that the police could take action if a driver was found to be asleep at the wheel and Councillor Groom said that they should, therefore, be pressed to be more active in this area.
· Councillor Keith Austin commented on the progress that had been achieved since 2005 and welcomed the involvement of a variety of people in that process.  In cases where there was no appropriate legislation, he recommended that officers should introduce Best Practice regarding vehicle safety and health and safety.  Taxi drivers often had more than one job and, therefore, were likely to become tired whilst driving.  This was an issue which required a sensible discussion and a Best Practice approach to limiting their hours of work.  The RRM agreed to raise this with the taxi operators.  Councillor Jacqui Seymour supported his comments and asked that representations should be made to the Government to give consideration to this issue.  
· Recommendation X4 – condition of a licence that drivers, etc. should be able to communicate effectively in English.
Councillor Nigel Dugmore asked if this was subject to a test, as required by his own professional body.  
The RRM responded that this would a future development and would be included as part of the street knowledge test as a means of raising the standards of Telford & Wrekin drivers.  He agreed to explore this further.

Councillor Bob Groom added that a driver’s competence should not only be based upon their street knowledge but also upon their understanding of emergency situations as they had a duty of care to the public.  


Councillor Karen Tomlinson asked when this was recommendation likely to be introduced and the RRM agreed to provide a future update.

· Recommendation S11 – insurance records held by each Operator
Councillor Karen Tomlinson asked for clarification of this and the RRM explained that it related to some specific problems with a small number of operators and these were dealt with on a daily basis.
· Recommendation S7 – requirement for private hire operators to quote a fare for each journey booked, etc.  This recommendation was currently on hold as it gave rise to substantial operational and evidential issues and advice be taken would be prior to implementation.
Councillor Groom commented that customers might not be aware that they had been over-charged and, therefore, they needed to know what the fare would be.  With regard to the ‘hold’ placed on its implementation, he asked from whom advice would be taken.  The RRM replied that this would be the Council’s Legal Services as part of the Conditions Review.  If the advice was that it could be included, a recommendation would go the Licensing Committee.
Councillor Karen Tomlinson asked what action customers could take if they were over-charged and the RRM drew her attention to the comment that ‘The increased use of ‘area based fares’ by some operators simplifies the matter’.
· Recommendation S6 – displaying of appropriate notice in private hire vehicles relating to fare to be charged and how to report over-charging to the Licensing Team.
Councillor Karen Tomlinson asked how this was being progressed and the RRM said that it was part of the Conditions Review but was also subject to evidential difficulties and his professional experience was that it was difficult to prove a customer had been charged more than they had been quoted.

· With regard to the consideration of the proposed Conditions by the Licensing Review, the RRM explained that this would be set out in the format of Best Practice.  In total 200-300 Conditions would be submitted for consideration.
Councillor Karen Tomlinson asked that a copy of these be provided to the Commission as soon as they were available.
· Recommendation S19 – driver training including disability awareness
Councillor Karen Tomlinson asked for the timescale for this recommendation.  The RRM responded that assistance was being given through the Disability Forum.  In addition there was a good BTEC qualification available which covered all the relevant matters and would be taken on board by the Council.  He agreed to report back to the Commission when the taxi training scheme had started.
· Recommendation S20 – development of a scheme to reward high standards (identified as ‘planned’)
Councillor Karen Tomlinson asked when this would start and the RRM replied that this was a low priority and would be considered as part of future service development.

· Recommendation S21 – Needs analysis as part of Local Transport Plan to identify the need for further taxi ranks.
Councillor Karen Tomlinson asked for a start date and the RRM explained that Licensing was already liaising with colleagues in Highways on specific needs, such as a new taxi rank in Oakengates.  There would not be an opportunity to be consulted as part of the LTP until 2010 but liaison would continue.
· Recommendation S37 – Licensing Unit’s Business Plan and equality issues
Councillor Karen Tomlinson asked if this was undertaken as part of their training and the RRM replied that it was for Licensing Staff, drivers and Elected Members.
· Councillor Kuldip Singh Sahota asked for clarification on the position regarding taxi drivers being charged to park outside Telford Central Railway Station.  The RRM explained that this was private land belonging to Central Trains and, therefore, not within the Council’s control.  However, he was pleased to report that it had become an agent for Central Trains and as such could now enforce appropriate legislation relating to private hire drivers using the Station.
· Councillor Karen Tomlinson commented that a mechanism needed to be put in place whereby the Commission could hear the views of the Taxi & Private Hire Forum following the adoption of the new Conditions.  
Councillor Roger Aveley asked if there was a procedure to allow for these Conditions to subsequently be amended if necessary.  The RRM explained that this was a legal process and any proposed major changes would be subject to consultation or could be challenged.  However, if the proposed changes were inconsequential, they could be approved by the Licensing Committee.
· Councillor Bob Groom referred to the issues resulting from having two systems, Hackney Cabs and Private Hire Vehicles and asked what progress had been made in resolving them.  The RRM responded that the industry had pressed the Government to remove the archaic statutory rules currently in place and allow for one set of rules.  However, there was no progress on this on the horizon.  Some local authorities had introduced one set of rules but the difficulty was that Private Hire Vehicles were regulated by local government and Hackney Cabs by central government.
In conclusion the Regulation & Resilience Manager commented that the relationship between the Licensing Unit and taxi drivers was no longer as hard edged as some of the recommendations in the Action Plan would suggest. The industry was now looking ahead and considering new issues as operators and drivers put forward their ideas.  
Action:

· In cases where there was no appropriate legislation regulating the working hours of taxi drivers, representations to be made to the Government to give consideration to this issue.  

· Recommendation X4 – condition of a licence that drivers, etc. should be able to communicate effectively in English - future update to be provided.

· Copy of new Taxi Conditions to be provided for all members of the Commission following approval by the Licensing Committee.
Recommendation S19 – driver training including disability awareness – HRR to report back to the Commission when the taxi training scheme had started.

SC4-15
UPDATE ON BEYOND EXCELLENCE THROUGH PEOPLE

The Head of Human Resources gave a presentation which covered the following:
· Background 

· Principles of the 1997 Agreement

· Key Issues – Gender Inequality

· NJC Job Evaluation Scheme

In conclusion he emphasised the following:

· Complex and time consuming work

· Need to get JE right to minimise problems further down the line

· Working together with trade unions

· Equality:  equal reward for equal demands at crux

· Major budgetary implications

· Seek to avoid turbulence and loss of morale

Jonathan Sedgebeer, Branch Secretary of UNISON informed the Commission that he was broadly in agreement with the Council on most issues but set out the areas of concern for the union side.

· The gender pay gap currently affecting women in both full time and part time posts and the high proportion of women in low paid jobs.

· The challenges presented by the Job Evaluation Scheme used so far, which had identified areas of ‘compression’ dating from the Council becoming a unitary authority.  

· The likely pay costs resulting from Job Evaluation and the effects upon the Council’s budget.  

· The union side was continuing to work with the Council but the pay modelling process could not be commenced until the issues of compression had been resolved.

· The union side believed that one scheme should be used to evaluate all posts in the Council rather than there being a separate one for managers.  It was their view that using a separate scheme would add to the overall costs of the process and dilute the integrity and transparency that had been shown far.  However, the Council jointly with the trade unions had commissioned two independent experts to advise upon the application of local conventions in the NJC Scheme.  This had recommended changes to some which they considered would address score stretch and some of the compression issues.  The trade unions had welcomed this step but it had resulted in some delays.  
· There were set three of terms and conditions at Telford & Wrekin to harmonise, which was a complex process.

In conclusion, Jonathan Sedgebeer stated that the unions were in agreement with most of the JE process and on what needed resolving.  Their aim was to agree a scheme that would be of detriment to the least number of employees.

Members raised the following points:

· Councillor Bob Groom commented on the complexities arising from any JE Scheme on this scale and acknowledged the need to ensure that managers were not paid less than their subordinates.

Jonathan Sedgebeer responded that only a very small number of posts were inverted in this way.  UNISON had members in these posts and needed to support them as well as the majority of other members.  

· Councillor Bob Groom asked when the pay modelling process was likely to start.  
David Johnson said that if the recommendations of the two independent experts were accepted, he anticipated a further three months.  No JE Scheme was perfect but the aim was to be as close to reality as possible.  There would always be anomalies and it would not be possible to solve all the issues identified.  A strategy would need to be developed to minimise the level of turbulence resulting from the exercise.  In addition, the Council needed to protect itself from equality claims by ‘No Win No Fee’ lawyers arising out of the evaluation.  Neither did the Council want to have to impose a scheme following failure to agree one with the unions.  Jonathan Sedgebeer supported this comment and said that a compromise between the two sides was the aim.
Councillor Groom congratulated management and the unions on the scale of work being undertaken and welcomed the fact that the two sides were still talking to each other.
· Councillor Keith Austin also commented on the fact that the two sides were still talking and benefiting from the experience of other authorities.  He stressed the need for good faith in resolving some issues.  The current compression issues needed to be dealt with in order that the pay modelling process could be started.

· Jonathan Sedgebeer commented that the biggest issue was that of communication with employees and maintaining transparency.

SC4-16
FORWARD PLAN

Members noted the two reports identified for Community Services in the current Forward Plan and asked that the Head of Community & Neighbourhood attend the November meeting of the Commission to provide them with further details of the proposed ‘Use of CCTV to Tackle Crime an Anti-Social Behaviour in the Borough.
Action:  Head of Community & Neighbourhood to attend the November meeting of the Commission and an appropriate item to be included on the agenda.

SC4-17
CHAIRMAN’S UPDATE

The Chairman tabled details of proposed agenda items for the meeting of the Commission on 6th November, 2008.  Having previously agreed to include an item on the use of CCTV, following a discussion Members also agreed that the following be included:
· The Employee Survey – update on Action Plan and outcomes
· Update from the Councillor Louise Lomax, Chairman of the Value for Money Scrutiny Group
SC4-18
DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS OF THE COMMISSION

Members noted that the additional meeting scheduled for 16th October, 2008 had now been re-arranged for Tuesday, 7th October, 2008.  The remaining meetings scheduled for 2008-09 were as set out on the agenda sheet.






Chairman:






Date:
1
SC4MINS110908

